








March 3, 2020 City of Elko Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 9

CITY OF ELKO
PLANNING COMMISSION

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
5:30 P.M., P.S.T., TUESDAY, MARCH 3, 2020
ELKO CITY HALL, COUNCIL CHAMBERS,
1751 COLLEGE AVENUE, ELKO, NEVADA

CALL TO ORDER

Jeff Dalling, Chairman of the City of Elko Planning Commission, called the meeting to order at
5:30 p.m.

ROLL CALL

Present: Evi Buell
Giovanni Puccinelli
Gratton Miller
Jeff Dalling
Stefan Beck
Tera Hooiman

Absent: John Anderson

City Staff Present: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner
Bob Thibault, Civil Engineer
Michele Rambo, Development Manager
Matt Griego, Fire Chief
Shelby Archuleta, Planning Technician

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

There were no public comments made at this time.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

February 4, 2020 – Regular Meeting FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

***Motion: Approve the February 4, 2020 minutes.

Moved by Evi Buell, Seconded by Tera Hooiman.

*Motion passed unanimously. (6-0)

I. NEW BUSINESS



March 3, 2020 City of Elko Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 9

A. PUBLIC HEARING

1. Review, consideration, and possible action on Variance No. 1-20, filed by Bailey &
Associates, LLC, for a reduction of the required exterior side yard setback from 15’
to 12’ for the development of a duplex in an R (Single-Family and Multi-Family)
Zoning District, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

The subject property is located generally on the south corner of the intersection of 8th

Street and Elm Street. (APN 001-066-005)

Jon Bailey, 780 W Silver Street, explained that he worked with Ms. Laughlin on the parcel,
which is a difficult parcel that is challenging with the width and the additional land that was
dedicated to the City for the sidewalk. In working with Ms. Laughlin, they came up with a design
that would accommodate this parcel and allow it to be developed. They ended up needing a
variance on the 15’ setback, which is why they are making application for the variance. It is
keeping with existing parcels that have 12’ setback. He thought it was straightforward to be able
to get a 22.5’ width for the building.

Dale Coleman, 831 Elm Street, said it was nice to see someone build on the property. Although
the City has adopted increased regulations to improve both Building Codes and right-of-ways.
Mr. Coleman felt that the contractor was well aware of the setbacks when he bought the
property. He thought the contractor should be tied, or should maintain the setbacks that the City
requires. If you don’t make him maintain the setbacks then where does that leave everyone else?
He thought the City needed a firm stand on where the setbacks are at, so that everyone builds
under the same regulations.

Robert Wines, 761 Elm Street, stated that he was adamantly opposed to putting a duplex on the
lot. Number one, he didn’t think anything could be built on the parcel without a Conditional Use
Permit, because it doesn’t meet the City Code for lot area. He didn’t think a 4,000 sq. ft. lot
should even be considered for a duplex. Number two this is a busy intersection. Across the street
is the central office for the Elko County School District. There is a lot of traffic there first thing
in the morning. It is also a main thoroughfare for access to Great Basin College, and main access
for children walking to Grammar School No. 2. He thought allowing a decrease in the setback
would make the visibility around the corner questionable. He attempted to look at the initial City
offering for this parcel, but he could not find it. A few years ago, the City offered to sell this
property to the adjacent property owner. Everyone knew this was a small lot, and that it wouldn’t
support building a structure, City of Elko even advertised it that way. One of the requirements
that they had for the adjacent property owner was that he was going to have to merge the parcel
to his own. 8th and Elm is a busy intersection. Mr. Wines thought that reducing the setback was
bad, and that there needed to be a Conditional Use Permit to use the lot for any kind of structure.
He mentioned that he would probably not be opposed to a single-family residence being built. He
also wouldn’t be opposed to a minor reduction of the setback for a single-family residence.
Putting two houses on that lot didn’t seem to Mr. Wines like a smart move.

Greg Staszak, 1252 7th Street, explained that he was inquiring about a variance too, and he was
dissuaded due to the usage of the word hardship. He needed to prove a hardship to be able to
apply for one, or to be able to potentially have the opportunity of getting it. He saw a duplex as
being a monetary benefit, and didn’t see where that was defined as hardship. There are already a



March 3, 2020 City of Elko Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 9

lot of items parked on the street at that corner. If there is a duplex there, how much more is going
to be parked on the street?

Cathy Laughlin, City Planner, wanted to give a little history on the parcel. Mr. Knight, who is the
adjacent property owner, came to the City and asked the City to sell that piece of land. When he
purchased his home, he was told that all of the fenced in area belonged to him, which was not the
case. He came to the City for a fence permit, and staff told him that was the City of Elko’s
parcel, but he could ask to purchase the parcel.  He asked to purchase the land and staff took it to
City Council. Mr. Knight gave some testimony on what he planned on doing with the property,
and provided testimony that it was not a viable use to anyone other than himself. City Council
was skeptical at the time, but they were convinced by Mr. Knight and they agreed to sell the
property under NRS 268.061, which allows the City of Elko to sell a piece of land directly to the
adjacent property owner as long as there is no viable use, or value, to anyone other than the
adjacent property owner. One of the conditions on the sale was that he was to do a parcel map to
combine the two parcels. Sometime went along and staff was asking Mr. Knight when he was
going to start the parcel map process. He would need to get a surveyor on board to get it started.
He then came back and said that he changed his mind. He wanted to be able to buy it, but be able
to sell it if necessary, or do something different with it. He didn’t want to combine the two
parcels, so staff took it back to City Council, told them that Mr. Knight changed his mind, and
didn’t want to comply with the conditions, and that the property would need to be sold by public
auction. We went through the process of a resolution to sell the property by public auction. It
was advertised properly and auctioned at a City Council meeting. City Council opened the bids
for the property and Mr. Bailey was the only bidder. Mr. Knight had backed out the day of, and
decided not to bid on the property. Mr. Bailey purchased the property. After he purchased the
property and the deed was recorded, staff asked Mr. Bailey for a deed of dedication for 10’ of
property for the curb, gutter and sidewalk to be in the City right-of-way. Ms. Laughlin then went
through the City of Elko Staff Report dated February 13, 2020. Staff recommended conditional
approval with the findings and conditions listed in the Staff Report. Staff was focusing on the
fact that anywhere else in the tree streets the exterior side yard setback could be 12’, which is
what the applicant is proposing.  It is just not a residence in existence today. That’s what staff
based their justification off. Also on the site plan, you can see the 10’ that was dedicated back to
the City.

Chairman Jeff Dalling said the whole project seemed pretty slick. Mr. Bailey said he worked
with Ms. Laughlin on this. It looks like he hit every kind of a trick to fit everything. It’s a pretty
slick little under the radar project, but it doesn’t fit.

Ms. Laughlin pointed out that the building would be meeting three of the four setbacks. He’s not
meeting the fourth one, but had this been in existence prior to 2003 he would have met it.

Chairman Dalling asked why Mr. Bailey deeded back the 10’ to the City.

Ms. Laughlin explained that it was for the sidewalk to be a part of the 8th Street right-of-way.

Chairman Dalling said he didn’t have to if he bought the lot.

Ms. Laughlin pointed out that it was a condition of the sale.



March 3, 2020 City of Elko Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 4 of 9

Chairman Dalling asked how much the sale was. This is all weird how it all fell apart.

Bob Thibault, Civil Engineer, said it was very strange and that he wanted to shed some light on
it. He pulled up the property on GIS and explained that the black lines are from Assessor’s office
and that the property is shown as 40’ wide, and they have always shown the property as being
40’ wide. When it was being appraised and surveyed, they surveyor asked Mr. Thibault why the
property was being shown as 40’ wide. The deed says it is Lots 1 and 2, and the original lots are
25’ wide. Therefore, the deed described it as 50’ wide, even though the Assessor and everybody
always thought it was 40’ wide. The sidewalk had already been built there, because that was
what the records showed. The applicant’s surveyor caught the error. He asked for a document
that could show that the property was 40’wide. No one could find a document, so we created that
document and after the sale, the applicant dedicated it back to the City. The property was
appraised as 40’ wide, the applicant paid for a 40’ wide property, and in the end, he ended up
with a 40’ wide property.

Michele Rambo, Development Manager, had no comments or concerns.

Mr. Thibault recommended approval with no additional comments or concerns.

Fire Chief Matt Griego had no concerns.

Commissioner Stefan Beck said either Mr. Wines was wrong or the City was wrong. Mr. Wines
thought it was illegal that the property exceeded square footage. He thought the City was saying
it was not illegal. Commissioner Beck wanted to resolve that conflict.

Mr. Wines explained that Elko City Code 3-2-5(G) sets out that the zoning requirements for a
single-family residence has a minimum lot size of 6,000 sq. ft. Ms. Laughlin read some
comments that there is an exception if the lot has some developmental issues, as this one does.
Mr. Wines asked Ms. Laughlin to read back into the record the exception.

Commissioner Beck asked if a single-family dwelling was not the same as a duplex.

Mr. Wines said it is not. He said the exception that he heard was for building a single-family
dwelling. He stated that he would not oppose the request to do a variance for the setback for a
single-family residence, but he is in opposition to them building a duplex on the lot because it
does not meet the requirements. When Ms. Laughlin read the language it said residential only, it
did not say duplex.

Ms. Laughlin explained that single-family residence and duplex are listed as a principle
permitted use in the R Zoning District.

Mr. Wines asked Ms. Laughlin again to read the exception to the Board.

Ms. Laughlin said that the exception states a single-family dwelling.

Mr. Wines said it says single-family dwelling, not duplex.



March 3, 2020 City of Elko Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 5 of 9

The definition for single-family dwelling from Section 3-2-2 of the Elko City Code was then
read into the record, which reads:
DWELLING, SINGLE-FAMILY: A building containing only one (1) dwelling unit and which is
constructed under the Building Code in accordance with title 2 of this Code, and which also
includes manufactured homes developed to specific standards in accordance with subsection 3-
2-3Q of this chapter.

Mr. Wines wanted to clarify something that Ms. Laughlin said. When he was searching back
through the records, he found that the deed to Mr. Bailey was dated July 1, 2019, recorded as
Document No. 756226 on July 2, 2019. There is a set of minutes of the meeting from two weeks
earlier where the issue of this setback was discussed, and Mr. Bailey said that he would agree to
the 10’ setback. The Easement setback was not recorded until January of 2020. Ms. Laughlin
said the deed was recorded before the discussion was made about the easement. Mr. Wines said
that was incorrect. The discussion was held and the deed, which included the entire 50’ parcel,
was recorded, then approximately six months later a deed back from Mr. Bailey for the 10’ was
recorded. Mr. Wines said he didn’t disagree that it happened; he was just questioning the timing
and the way it all fell out.

Ms. Laughlin said that was correct. She said she should have stated that the discussion on the
deed of dedication back to the City of Elko happened after the auction of the property.

Mr. Wines stated that he would not be here tonight if a single-family residential dwelling were
proposed.

Commissioner Beck asked Mr. Coleman to clarify his comments.

Mr. Coleman clarified that he requested that the Commission consider that there are regulations
for setbacks for a reason and it is a standard of 15’. The contractor knew very well, when he
dedicated that 10’ back, what the setback was. He didn’t think they should allow him to have it
decreased to 13’, so he could put a duplex on it.

Commissioner Gratton Miller asked if Mr. Bailey could buy the 10’ back from the City.

Ms. Laughlin said that was not an option.

Commissioner Tera Hooiman said her only question was in regards to the hardship. Mr. Staszak
had said that he was interested in purchasing the property and he didn’t present enough of a
hardship. The hardship that was presented from Ms. Laughlin’s explanation was that he
purchased this land and he’s not able to profit off his purchase.

Ms. Laughlin clarified that the hardship was listed in the application. Mr. Staszak’s condition
was a complete different situation; he has a 10,000 sq. ft. lot and his hardship was that he didn’t
want to take up some backyard space.

Commissioner Hooiman read the hardship that was listed in the application: “Narrow lot that had
an additional 10’ dedicated to the City.” Commissioner Hooiman said that his hardship is that he
purchased it and gave it back.



March 3, 2020 City of Elko Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 6 of 9

Chairman Dalling added that he only bought the 40’ wide, and he didn’t know that he purchased
the extra 10’ when he purchased it. He said it sounded like this property should have only been
sold to Mr. Knight and combined with his property.

Mr. Thibault explained that was the initial attempted plan, but Mr. Knight didn’t care to follow
through with that. When Mr. Knight decided he didn’t want to merge this with his other property
and he stated that he’d rather be able to sell or develop the property in the future, it meant that it
was no longer a remnant that the City could sell directly to him without going to public auction.
There are two different processes through NRS.

Chairman Dalling still felt that it should have been merged to the other property. He was trying
to find the hardship. He said the pre 2003 didn’t do anything for him. It is such a small lot.

Mr. Bailey felt it was a real hardship to have 51% of the property be setbacks and trying to
develop a 19’ wide footprint. There are all sorts of difficulties and challenges with getting that to
work. This would be a difficult property. During the process of dedicating that back, he inquired
on the reality of getting a variance and he had a lot of staff support for that based on the
situation, so he felt comfortable dedicating the 10’ back to the City. Mr. Bailey felt that the
variance was critical for this property to be developable. He went forward and purchased the
property under assurances that it was going to be a developable piece of property.

Ms. Laughlin asked Mr. Bailey if he would consider building a single-family residence on that
property.

Mr. Bailey didn’t think the zoning was in question here; it’s the footprint. He thought they
needed to be allowed to build to the zoning.

Chairman Dalling said they just went over some of that Code. The language does say single-
family dwelling, not zone.

Mr. Bailey asked Ms. Laughlin if she could comment on that. He didn’t understand if that had
been established by staff.

Ms. Laughlin explained that if the property does not meet the lot area there is an exception in 3-
2-5(G) that states that it can be considered buildable for a single-family dwelling. It does not say
a single-family dwelling or duplex.

Mr. Bailey asked if Ms. Laughlin was saying, the lot under the code doesn’t allow for duplexes.

Ms. Laughlin clarified that under the Code a principle permitted use under the R District is a
single-family dwelling, duplex, triplex, or fourplex. Anything five or more is required a CUP.
With the lot not meeting the area requirement for a single-family dwelling, there is that
exception. Any lot of record with the Elko County Recorder prior to December 9, 1975, which
don’t meet the requirements of the lot area, shall be considered a buildable lot for a single-family
dwelling.

Commissioner Beck asked Mr. Bailey if someone gave him assurances that he could build a
duplex on the property.



March 3, 2020 City of Elko Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 7 of 9

Ms. Laughlin explained that a duplex is a principle permitted use in the R Zoning District.

Mr. Bailey explained that he worked with staff through the entire process. He had been very
accommodating in making sure that he did everything in alignment with what staff would
support, and that is what he has proposed. He said he would expect to get the Commission’s
support for something that has staff support. He said this was a very frustrating thing if they are
going against the staff recommendation on the property.

Ms. Laughlin mentioned if this was an existing residence and he came to the City and wanted to
convert it into a duplex. A duplex is a principle permitted use in the R Zone District and it would
be allowed. If it was in existence prior to 2003 it could have a 12’ exterior side setback.

Chairman Dalling said it didn’t meet any of these things. Chairman Dalling pointed out to Mr.
Bailey that he had a full audience of people that were not happy with the project either.

Mr. Bailey said they followed all steps to prepare a well thought out building plan that would add
value to the neighborhood with the structure that they are proposing to build. Taking 51% of the
property in setbacks after they dedicated back 10’ to the City. He felt that was a hardship they
met. Staff has shown that they meet all of the conditions, and he really wanted to get support
from the Planning Commission.

Mr. Wines thought, even if the Planning Commission approved the variance, that Mr. Bailey
would not be able to build a duplex on the lot. It does not meet the requirements. It is unfortunate
that someone misread the Code. The Code specifically says that if the lot does not meet the size
requirements in an R Zone, that the only thing you can build on it is a single-family residence.
Mr. Wines again stated that he would not be opposed to a variance for the setback if it were for a
single-family residence. He didn’t think this Board could authorize a variance without having
had a conditional use permit to allow the 4,000 sq. ft. lot to have a duplex on it that violates the
Code.

Mr. Thibault said he would tend to agree with Mr. Wines, to a certain degree. Maybe it is an
unfortunate wording in the Code. Mr. Thibault said he was under the impression that existing
lots, regardless of their size, were considered buildable. Mr. Thibault said he would still support
the variance, but he didn’t think Mr. Bailey would be allowed to build a duplex on the property
without an additional variance, not a conditional use permit as Mr. Wines suggested, for lot area
and lot width.

Commissioner Evi Buell asked what the Commissioners were thinking on this.

Chairman Dalling didn’t think it fit. He said he’s going to deny it and that he wasn’t going to
vote for it.

Commissioner Miller concurred with Chairman Dalling. It doesn’t fit within the Code.

Commissioner Buell stated that she wasn’t in agreement with Mr. Dalling.

Commissioner Beck said he agreed with Chairman Dalling.



March 3, 2020 City of Elko Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 8 of 9

Commissioner Buell said it was inherently a mess. She thought that it was unfortunate for
everyone involved. They are talking about a piece of land with notable setback restrictions that
are overlaid on a neighbor that was parceled out under older standards. That is where she was
sympathetic to the applicant’s position. Looking at the neighborhood, she felt that this was a
good non-disruptive fit. Commissioner Buell felt this was a good project that fit the character and
the nature of the neighborhood.

Commissioner Hooiman agreed with Commissioner Buell to a certain extent. The only part that
she was hung up on was the duplex aspect. Personally, she would also be in support of a single-
family dwelling, with the definition that she read. Her interpretation of that was a single-family
dwelling, not a duplex. She felt like it wasn’t misread, she felt like it was misinterpreted to fit the
situation.

Ms. Laughlin explained to Mr. Bailey that the issue was the duplex part of it. She asked him if he
would want the Commission to consider taking no action on this item, or tabling the item, and
coming back with a plan for a single-family residence.

Mr. Bailey said no.

***Motion: Deny Variance No. 1-20.

Commissioner Hooiman’s finding to support the recommendation was the testimony
provided during the meeting in regards to Section 3-2-5(G) of the Elko City Code.

Moved by Tera Hooiman, seconded by Gratton Miller.

*Motion passed (5-1, Commissioner Buell voted No).

Chairman Dalling informed Mr. Bailey that he had the right to appeal the Planning
Commission’s decision to the City Council.

II. REPORTS

A. Summary of City Council Actions.

Ms. Laughlin reported that at the February 11th City Council Meeting they approved the
Planning Commission annual report of activities and some corrective deeds. At the
February 25th City Council Meeting they approved Final Map 15-19 for Tower Hill Unit
3, along with the Performance Agreement. They also approved a Revocable Permit for a
sign in the North 5th Street right-of-way for Edward Jones, they denied land sale of 8,000
sq. ft. behind Juneau Street, and they approved a Resolution for the Master Plan
Amendment. They also approved Tentative Map 14-19 for Mountain View Town Homes
and Tentative Map 16-19 for Ruby Mountain Peaks Subdivision. The election filings have
begun for the two seats on City Council. If anyone is interested in running in the November
election, they have until March 13th to file for City Council.

B. Summary of Redevelopment Agency Actions.



March 3, 2020 City of Elko Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 9 of 9

C. Professional articles, publications, etc.

1. Zoning Bulletin

D. Miscellaneous Elko County

E. Training

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

There were no public comments made at this time.

NOTE: The Chairman or Vice Chairman reserves the right to change the order of the agenda
and if the agenda is not completed, to recess the meeting and continue on another
specified date and time. Additionally, the Planning Commission reserves the right to
combine two or more agenda items, and/or remove an item from the agenda, or delay
discussion relating to an item on the agenda at any time.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned.

Jeff Dalling, Chairman Tera Hooiman, Secretary



Agenda Item # I.A.1 

Created on 9/12/2019 Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible action on Conditional Use Permit No. 1-

20, filed by Bill Dupee & Amber Dupee-Johnson, which would allow for a bar to be

located within the Central Business District, specifically 401 Railroad Street, and

matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

2. Meeting Date:  May 5, 2020

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS, PUBLIC HEARINGS

4. Time Required: 15 Minutes

5. Background Information: As required by Elko City Code 3-2-10(5)(C) any new

business such as a bar within the Central Business District requires a Conditional

Use Permit.

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, Staff Report

8. Recommended Motion: Move to conditionally approve Conditional Use Permit 1-20

based on the facts, findings and conditions presented in Staff Report dated April 17,

2020

9. Findings: See staff report dated April 17, 2020

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner

11. Agenda Distribution:  Bill Dupee & Amber Dupee-Johnson

2428 Rodeo Ct 

Elko, NV 89801 





Page 1 of 7 

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT 

DATE: April 17, 2020 

PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: May 5, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: I.A.1

APPLICATION NUMBER: Conditional Use Permit 1-20

APPLICANT: Bill Dupee & Amber Dupee-Johnson

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 

Within the CBD, any new business involving activities which are reasonably likely to discourage 

other businesses through light, noise, odors, types and levels of activity, or the creation of a 

nuisance, such as (without limitation) auto and truck service and repair facilities; mobile home, 

recreational vehicle and truck sales lots; gas service stations; miniwarehousing facilities; 

veterinary clinics; bars; and other uses determined by the city to have similar impacts, shall be 

required to first obtain a conditional use permit. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

RECOMMEND APPROVAL, subject to findings of fact, and conditions as stated in this report. 

City of Elko  

1751 College Avenue 

Elko, NV  89801 

(775) 777-7160

FAX (775) 777-7119 



CUP 1-20 
Bill and Amber Dupee 

 Page 2 of 7 

PROJECT INFORMATION 

PARCEL NUMBER: 001-265-018

PROPERTY SIZE: 2,500 sq. ft. 

EXISTING ZONING: C –General Commercial 

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION:  MU-DWTN (Mixed Use Downtown) 

EXISTING LAND USE: Developed as Commercial Land Use 

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS: 

• The property is surrounded by Commercial zoned property, developed land to the north,
east and west and Central Business District parking corridor to the south. 

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS: 

• The property is currently developed.
• The property is fairly flat.
• The property is accessed from Commercial Street and 4th Street.
• The property is not in a flood zone.

APPLICABLE MASTER PLANS AND CITY CODE SECTIONS: 

• City of Elko Master Plan-Land Use Component
• City of Elko Master Plan-Transportation Component
• City of Elko Redevelopment Plan
• City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan
• City of Elko Code 3-2-3 General Provisions
• City of Elko Code 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts
• City of Elko Code 3-2-10 Commercial Zoning District
• City of Elko Code 3-2-17 Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations
• City of Elko Code 3-2-18 Conditional Use Permits
• City of Elko Code 3-8 Flood Plain Management

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

• The application for the Conditional Use Permit was filed as required under City Code 3-2-
10(B)(5)(c).

• There are no other conditional uses on the property.
• The property is located in the Redevelopment Area, Central Business District.
• The land is not owned by the applicant but the applicant has permission from the property

owner to apply for the Conditional Use Permit.

MASTER PLAN 

Land Use 

1. The Master Plan Land Use Atlas designates the area as Mixed Use Downtown.



CUP 1-20 
Bill and Amber Dupee 

 Page 3 of 7 

2. Objective 6: Encourage multiple scales of commercial development to serve the needs of
the region, the community, and individual neighborhoods.

3. Objective 8: Encourage new development that does not negatively impact County-wide
natural systems, or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages,
floodplains etc., or pose a danger to human health and safety.

The conditional use is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the Master Plan. 

Transportation 

1. The Master Plan identifies Railroad Street as a Commercial Industrial Collector and 4th

Street is not classified in the Transportation Component.
2. The site has pedestrian access along Railroad and 4th Street.
3. Best Practice Objective 1; Provide a balanced transportation system that accommodates

vehicle, bicycles, and pedestrians, while being sensitive to, and supporting the adjacent
land uses.

The conditional use is in conformance with the Transportation Component of the Master Plan and 
existing transportation infrastructure. 

CITY OF ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN 

1. The property is located within the Redevelopment Area and more specifically the Central

Business District.

2. Redevelopment goals and objectives:

• To promote and insure public safety and welfare; to eliminate and prevent the

spread of blight and deterioration, and the conservation, rehabilitation and

redevelopment of the Redevelopment Area in accord with the Master Plan, the

Redevelopment Plan and local codes and ordinances

• To promote and support a pedestrian oriented downtown; and, to achieve an

environment reflecting a high level of concern for architectural, landscape, and

urban design and land use principles appropriate for attainment of the

objectives of the Redevelopment Plan.

• To ensure adequate vehicular access and circulation; to retain and sustain

existing businesses by means of redevelopment and rehabilitation activities,

and encourage cooperation and participation of owners, businesses and public

agencies in the revitalization of the Redevelopment Area.

• To promote historic and cultural interest in the Redevelopment Area; and,

encourage investment by the private sector in the development and

redevelopment of the Redevelopment Area by eliminating impediments to such

development and redevelopment.

• To achieve Plan conformance and advancement through re-planning, redesign

and the redevelopment of areas which are stagnant or improperly used.

3. The proposed development repurposes the existing vacant portion of a building.

The proposed Conditional Use Permit is in conformance with the Redevelopment Plan. 

ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN 



CUP 1-20 
Bill and Amber Dupee 

 Page 4 of 7 

The property is located outside the 30-year capture zone for City wells. 

The conditional use is in conformance with the Wellhead Protection Plan. 

SECTION 3-2-3 GENERAL PROVISIONS 

Section 3-2-3 (C) 1 of City code specifies use restrictions. The following use restrictions shall 
apply.  

1. Principal Uses: Only those uses and groups of uses specifically designated as
“principal uses permitted’ in zoning district regulations shall be permitted as
principal uses; all other uses shall be prohibited as principal uses

2. Conditional Uses: Certain specified uses designated as “conditional uses
permitted” may be permitted as principal uses subject to special conditions of
location, design, construction, operation and maintenance hereinafter specified in
this chapter or imposed by the planning commission or city council.

3. Accessory Uses: Uses normally accessory and incidental to permitted principal or
conditional uses may be permitted as hereinafter specified.

Other uses may apply under certain conditions with application to the City. 

1. Section 3-2-3(D) states that “No land may be used or structure erected where the land
is held by the planning commission to be unsuitable for such use or structure by reason
of flooding, concentrated runoff, inadequate drainage, adverse soil or rock formation,
extreme topography, low bearing strength, erosion susceptibility, or any other features
likely to be harmful to the health, safety and general welfare of the community. The
planning commission, in applying the provisions of this section, shall state in writing
the particular facts upon which its conclusions are based. The applicant shall have the
right to present evidence contesting such determination to the city council if he or she
so desires, whereupon the city council may affirm, modify or withdraw the
determination of unsuitability.”

The proposed use is required to have an approval as a conditional use to be in conformance with 
ECC 3-2-3 as required in ECC 3-2-10(B)(5).  

SECTION 3-2-4 ESTABLISHMENT OF ZONING DISTRICTS 

1. Section 3-2-4(B)  Required Conformity To District Regulations: The regulations set forth
in this chapter for each zoning district shall be minimum regulations and shall apply
uniformly to each class or kind of structure or land, except as provided in this subsection.

2. Section 3-2-4(B)(4) stipulates that no yard or lot existing on the effective date hereof shall
be reduced in dimension or area below the minimum requirements set forth in this title.

The proposed conditional use permit is in conformance with Elko City Code 3-2-4. 

SECTION 3-2-10 COMMERCIAL DISTRICTS 

1. Section 3-2-10(B)(5) Within the CBD, any new business involving activities which are
reasonably likely to discourage other businesses through light, noise, odors, types and
levels of activity, or the creation of a nuisance, such as (without limitation) auto and truck
service and repair facilities; mobile home, recreational vehicle and truck sales lots; gas
service stations; miniwarehousing facilities; veterinary clinics; bars; and other uses
determined by the city to have similar impacts, shall be required to first obtain a
conditional use permit



CUP 1-20 
Bill and Amber Dupee 

 Page 5 of 7 

2. Height Restrictions: All structures within the C general commercial zoning district must
comply with the height and other requirements of the current city airport master plan, to
the extent the plan applies to that location.

3. The property doesn’t abut a residential zone so therefore is not required to comply with
screen wall requirements set forth in subsection 3-2-3(J).

4. Development of the property is required to be in conformance with City code and
conditions for the CUP.

The proposed use is in conformance with the development standards of this section of code. 

SECTION 3-2-17 TRAFFIC, ACCESS, PARKING AND LOADING REGULATIONS 

1. All principal permitted uses occupying basement floor area, ground level or first story
floor area or second story floor area, or any combination thereof, and which are situated
on property located within four hundred feet (400') of the Central Business District (CBD)
public parking corridor, are exempted from providing required off street parking.

The proposed use conforms to section 3-2-17 of Elko city code. 

SECTION 3-2-18 CONDITIONAL USE PERMITS 

General Regulations: 

1. Certain uses of land within designated zoning districts shall be permitted as principal uses
only upon issuance of a conditional use permit. Subject to the requirements of this chapter,
other applicable chapters, and where applicable to additional standards established by the
Planning Commission, or the City Council, a conditional use permit for such uses may be
issued.

2. Every conditional use permit issued, including a permit for a mobile home park, shall
automatically lapse and be of no effect one (1) year from the date of its issue unless the
permit holder is actively engaged in developing the specific property to the use for which
the permit was issued.

3. Every conditional use permit issued shall be personal to the permittee and applicable only
to the specific use and to the specific property for which it is issued. However, the
Planning Commission may approve the transfer of the conditional use permit to another
owner. Upon issuance of an occupancy permit for the conditional use, signifying that all
zoning and site development requirements imposed in connection with the permit have
been satisfied, the conditional use permit shall thereafter be transferable and shall run with
the land, whereupon the maintenance or special conditions imposed by the permit, as well
as compliance with other provisions of the zoning district, shall be the responsibility of the
property owner.

4. Conditional use permits shall be reviewed from time to time by City personnel.
Conditional use permits may be formally reviewed by the Planning Commission. In the
event that any or all of the conditions of the permit or this chapter are not adhered to, the
conditional use permit will be subject to revocation.

3-8 FLOOD PLAIN MANAGEMENT

The parcel is not located within a designated flood plain. 

FINDINGS 

1. The conditional use is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the Master Plan.



CUP 1-20 
Bill and Amber Dupee 

 Page 6 of 7 

2. The conditional use is in conformance with the Transportation Component of the Master
Plan and existing transportation infrastructure.

3. The conditional use is in conformance with the Wellhead Protection Plan.

4. Approval of the Conditional Use Permit is required for the proposed use to be in
conformance to sections 3-2-3 & 3-2-10 of the Elko city code.

5. The proposed use is in conformance with sections 3-2-4, 3-2-17, and 3-2-18 of the Elko
city code.

6. The proposed use conforms to section 3-8 of Elko city code.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends APPROVAL of CUP 1-20 with the following conditions: 

1. The permit is granted to the applicant Bill Dupee and Amber Dupee-Johnson for a
brewery and/or bar establishment subject to compliance with all conditions imposed by a
conditional use permit.

2. The permit shall be personal to the permittee and applicable only to the specific use (bar
establishment) and to the specific property (401 Railroad Street) for which it is issued.
However, the Planning Commission may approve the transfer of the conditional use
permit to another owner. Upon issuance of an occupancy permit for the conditional use,
signifying that all zoning and site development requirements imposed in connection with
the permit have been satisfied, the conditional use permit shall thereafter be transferable
and shall run with the land, whereupon the maintenance or special conditions imposed by
the permit, as well as compliance with other provisions of the zoning district, shall be the
responsibility of the property owner.

3. CUP 1-20 to be recorded with the Elko County Recorder within 90 days after the business
license is issued for the bar.

4. Signage will require review and comment by the Redevelopment Agency prior to approval
by the City.

5. Applicant shall install and maintain exterior security lighting that illuminates both the
Railroad and 4th Street frontages as well as the alleyway adjacent to the establishment.
The security lighting shall be sufficient to make easily discernible the appearance and
conduct of all persons and patrons in the vicinity of the front and side entrances, and shall
be positioned so as not to cause excessive glare for persons located outside of the vicinity
of the front and side entrances, such as pedestrians, motorists, and owners and occupants
of neighboring properties.

6. Applicant shall remove all bottles, cans, trash, broken glass, debris, and bodily fluids from
abutting properties upon closing on each day applicant's business is open.

7. Applicant shall maintain an active account with Elko Sanitation at all times for the
collection of garbage, refuse and waste within the common collection area of the 400
block.



CUP 1-20 
Bill and Amber Dupee 

 Page 7 of 7 

Police Department: 

1. Communicate effectively and proactively with Elko Police Department regarding

management and safety of the business, such as; provide notice as to management or

supervision changes, problems with security, changes with lighting, camera systems,

security, weapons polices, etc.

2. Zero tolerance of employee consumption of alcohol while they are on shift.

3. Security cameras are required and a minimum of ten days stored video footage from the

security system to be maintained at all times.
4. Business hours to be determined as appropriate by the Planning Commission. Elko Police

Department recommends closing time on Friday and Saturday of 2:00 a.m. (following
day) and all other days of the week close time of 1:00 a.m. (following day).





























Agenda Item #  I.B.1 

Created on 4/10/2020 Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

1. Review, consideration and possible approval of Final Map No. 1-20, filed by Kelly

Builders, LLC, for the development of a subdivision entitled Townhomes at Ruby

View involving the proposed division of approximately 1.297 acres of property into

10 townhouse lots for residential development and 1 common lot within the R

(Single Family and Multiple Family Residential) Zoning District, and matters

related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

2. Meeting Date:  May 5, 2020

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS

4. Time Required: 15 Minutes

5. Background Information: Subject property is located on the south side of Indian View

Heights Drive at the intersection of Griswold Drive. (APN 001-530-026)

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application and Staff Report

8. Recommended Motion: Recommend that the City Council accept, on behalf of the

public, the parcels of land offered for dedication for public use in conformity with

the terms of the offer of dedication; that the final map substantially complies with

the tentative map; that the City Council approve the agreement to install

improvements in accordance with the approved construction plans that satisfies the

requirements of Title 2 Chapter 3, and conditionally approve Final Map 1-20 with

findings and conditions listed in the Staff Report dated April 20, 2020.

9. Findings: See Staff Report dated April 20, 2020

10. Prepared By: Michele Rambo, AICP, Development Manager

11. Agenda Distribution:  Kelly Builders, LLC

209 Raptor Court 

Elko, NV 89801 

kellybuilders@frontiernet.net 

Carter Engineering, LLC 

Attn: Lana Carter 

P.O. Box 794 

Elko, NV 89801 

lanalcarter@live.com 





Page 1 of 7

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT

REPORT DATE: April 20, 2020
PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: May 5, 2020
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: I.B.1
APPLICATION NUMBER: Final Map 1-20
APPLICANT: Kelly Builders, LLC
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Townhomes at Ruby View

A Final Map for the division of approximately 1.297 acres into 10 townhouse lots for
residential development and 1 common lot within an R (Single Family and Multiple Family
Residential) zoning district.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

RECOMMEND CONDITIONAL APPROVAL, subject to findings of fact, and conditions as stated
in this report.

City of Elko
1751 College Avenue

Elko, NV  89801
(775) 777-7160

FAX (775) 777-7119



Final Map 15-19
Tower Hill Phase 3

Page 2 of 7

PROJECT INFORMATION

PARCEL NUMBER: 001-530-026

PARCEL SIZE: 1.297 Acres

EXISTING ZONING: (R) Single-Family and Multiple-Family Residential.

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: (RES-MD) Residential Medium Density

EXISTING LAND USE: Vacant

BACKGROUND:

1. The Final Map for Townhomes at Ruby View has been presented before expiration of the
subdivision proceedings in accordance with NRS 278.360(1)(a)(2) and City code.

2. The Planning Commission reviewed and recommended a conditional approval to the City
Council on the Townhomes at Ruby View Tentative Map.

3. The City Council conditionally approved the Townhomes at Ruby View Tentative Map.
4. The subdivision is located on APN 001-530-026.
5. The proposed subdivision consists of 10 residential lots and 1 common lot.
6. The total subdivided area is approximately 1.297 acres.
7. The proposed density is 7.71 units per acre.
8. No public streets are being dedicated as part of this subdivision.
9. Drainage and utility easements are provided along all lot lines.
10. The property is located on the south side of Indian View Heights Drive at the intersection

of Griswold Drive.

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:

The property is surrounded by:
 North: Single and Multiple Residential / Developed
 South: Single and Multiple Residential (R) / Developed
 East: Single and Multiple Residential (R) / Developed
 West: Tribal Land / Developed

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS:

 The property is an undeveloped residential parcel.
 The site abuts previous residential development to the north, churches to the south, east,

and west.
 The parcel has some slope to it, which is incorporated into the design of the lots where

possible.
 The property will be accessed off of Indian View Heights Drive.

APPLICABLE MASTER PLAN AND CITY CODE SECTIONS:

 City of Elko Master Plan – Land Use Component



Final Map 15-19
Tower Hill Phase 3

Page 3 of 7

 City of Elko Master Plan – Transportation Component
 City of Elko Redevelopment Plan
 City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-3-7 Final Map State (Stage III)
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-3-8 Content and Format of Final Map Submittal
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-3-9 to 3-3-16 (Inclusive) Subdivision Design Standards
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-3-17 to 3-3-22 (Inclusive) Public Improvements/

Guarantees
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-3, 3-2-4, 3-2-5(E), 3-2-5(G), and 3-2-17 Zoning Code

Standards
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-8 Flood Plain Management

MASTER PLAN - Land use:

Conformance with the Land Use component of the Master Plan was evaluated with review and
approval of the Tentative Map.  The Final Map is in conformance with the Tentative Map.

Therefore, the proposed subdivision is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the
Master Plan.

MASTER PLAN - Transportation:

Conformance with the Transportation component of the Master Plan was evaluated with review
and approval of the Tentative Map.  The Final Map is in conformance with the Tentative Map.

Therefore, the proposed subdivision is in conformance with the Transportation Component of the
Master Plan.

ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN:

The property is not located within the redevelopment area.

ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN:

The property is located within the 20-year capture zone for several City of Elko wells.
Development of the site is required to be connected to a programmed sewer system and all street
drainage will be directed to a storm sewer system.

As the project is designed, it does not present a hazard to City wells.

SECTION 3-3-7 FINAL MAP STAGE (STAGE III):

Pre-submission Requirements (C)(1) – The Final Map is in conformance with the zone
requirements.

Pre-submission Requirements (C)(2) – The proposed Final Map conforms to the Tentative
Map.

SECTION 3-3-8 CONTENT AND FORMAT OF FINAL MAP SUBMITTAL:

A. Form and Content – The Final Map conforms to the required size specifications and
provides the appropriate affidavits and certifications.



Final Map 15-19
Tower Hill Phase 3

Page 4 of 7

B. Identification Data
1. The Final Map identifies the subdivision and provides its location by section,

township, range, and county.
2. The Final Map was prepared by a properly licensed surveyor.
3. The Final Map provides a scale, north arrow, and date of preparation.

C. Survey Data
1. The boundaries of the subdivision are fully balanced and closed.
2. Any exceptions are noted on the Final Map.
3. The Final Map is tied to a section corner.
4. The location and description of any physical encroachments upon the boundary of

the subdivision are noted on the Final Map.
D. Descriptive Data

1. The name, right-of-way lines, courses, lengths, and widths of all streets and
easements are noted on the Final Map.

2. All drainage ways are noted on the Final Map.
3. All utility and public service easements are noted on the Final Map.
4. The location and dimensions of all lots, parcels, and exceptions are shown on the

Final Map.
5. All residential lots are numbered consecutively on the Final Map.
6. There are no sites dedicated to the public shown on the Final Map.
7. The locations of adjoining subdivisions are noted on the Final Map with required

information.
8. There are no deed restrictions proposed.

E. Dedication and Acknowledgment
1. The owner’s certificate has the required dedication information for all easements

and right-of-ways.
2. The execution of dedication is acknowledged with space to be certified by a

notary public.
F. Additional Information

1. All centerline monuments for streets are noted as being set on the Final Map.
2. The centerline and width of each right-of-way is noted on the Final Map.
3. The Final Map indicates the location of monuments that will be set to determine

the boundaries of the subdivision.
4. The length and bearing of each lot line is identified on the Final Map.
5. The Final Map is located adjacent to a city boundary, which is shown on the Final

Map.
6. The Final Map identifies the location of the section lines nearest the property.

G. City to Check
1. Closure calculations have been provided. Civil improvement plans have been

approved.  Drainage plans have been approved. An engineer’s estimate has been
provided.

2. The lot closures are within the required tolerances.
H. Required Certifications

1. The Owner’s Certificate is shown on the Final Map.
2. The Owner’s Certificate offers for dedication all right-of-ways shown on the Final

Map.



Final Map 15-19
Tower Hill Phase 3

Page 5 of 7

3. A Clerk Certificate is shown on the Final Map, certifying the signature of the City
Council.

4. The Owner’s Certificate offers for dedication all easements shown on the Final
Map.

5. A Surveyor’s Certificate is shown on the Final Map and provides the required
language.

6. The City Engineer’s Certificate is shown on the Final Map.
7. A certificate from the Nevada Division of Environmental Protection is provided

with the required language.
8. The engineer of record has submitted the Tentative Map and construction plans to

the state, which have been approved.
9. A certificate from the Division of Water Resources is provided on the Final Map

with the required language.
10. The construction plans identify the required water meters for the subdivision.

SECTION 3-3-9 THROUGH 3-3-16 (INCLUSIVE)

The proposed subdivision was evaluated for conformance to the referenced sections of code
during the Tentative Map process.

The proposed development conforms with these sections of City code.

SECTION 3-3-17 RESPONSIBILITY FOR PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS

The subdivider shall be responsible for all required improvements in conformance with this
section of City code.

SECTION 3-3-18 CONSTRUCTION PLANS

The subdivider has submitted plans to the city and state agencies for review to receive all
required permits in accordance with this section of City code. The plans have been approved by
City staff.

SECTION 3-3-19 CONSTRUCTION AND INSPECTION

The subdivider has submitted plans to the city and state agencies for review to receive all permits
in accordance with this section of City code.

SECTION 3-3-20 REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS

The subdivider has submitted civil improvement plans which are in conformance with this
section of City code.

Civil improvements include curb, gutter, and sidewalk as well as paving and utilities within the
Indian View Heights right-of-way.



Final Map 15-19
Tower Hill Phase 3

Page 6 of 7

SECTION 3-3-21 AGREEMENT TO INSTALL IMPROVEMENTS

The subdivider will be required to enter into a Performance Agreement to conform to this section
of City code.

SECTION 3-3-22 PERFORMANCE AND MAINTENANCE GUARANTEES

The subdivider will be required to provide a Performance and Maintenance Guarantee as
stipulated in the Performance Agreement in conformance with this section of City code.

SECTIONS 3-2-3, 3-2-4, 3-2-5(E), 3-2-5(G), AND 3-2-17

The proposed subdivision was evaluated for conformance to the referenced sections of code
during the Tentative Map process.

The proposed development conforms with these sections of City code.

SECTION 3-8 FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT:

This parcel is not designated in a Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA).

FINDINGS

1. The Final Map for Townhomes at Ruby View has been presented before expiration of the
subdivision proceedings in accordance with NRS 278.360(1)(a)(2) and City code.

2. The Final Map is in conformance with the Tentative Map.

3. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with the Land Use and Transportation
Components of the Master Plan.

4. The proposed development conforms with Sections 3-3-9 through 3-3-16 (inclusive).

5. The Subdivider shall be responsible for all required improvements in conformance with
Section 3-3-17 of City code.

6. The Subdivider has submitted construction plans in conformance with Section 3-3-18 of
City code.

7. The Subdivider has submitted plans to the city and state agencies for review to receive all
required permits in accordance with the requirements of Section 3-3-19 of City code.

8. The Subdivider has submitted construction plans which, having been found to be in
conformance with Section 3-3-20 of City code, have been approved by City staff.

9. The Subdivider will be required to enter into a Performance Agreement to conform to
Section 3-3-21 of City code.



Final Map 15-19
Tower Hill Phase 3

Page 7 of 7

10. The Subdivider will be required to provide a Performance and Maintenance Guarantee as
stipulated in the Performance Agreement in conformance with Section 3-3-22 of City
code.

11. The proposed development conforms to Sections 3-2-3, 3-2-4, 3-2-5(E), 3-2-5(G), and 3-
2-17 of City code.

12. The proposed development is in conformance with Section 3-8 of City code.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends this item be conditionally approved with the following conditions:

1. The Developer shall execute a Performance and Maintenance Agreement in accordance
with Section 3-3-21 of City code.  The Performance Agreement shall be secured in
accordance with Section 3-3-22 of City code.  In conformance with Section 3-3-21 of
City code, the public improvements shall be completed within a time of no later than two
(2) years of the date of Final Map approval by the City Council unless extended as
stipulated in City code.

2. The Performance and Maintenance Agreement shall be approved by the City Council.

3. The Developer shall enter into the Performance and Maintenance Agreement within 30
days of approval of the Final Map by the City Council.

4. The Final Map for Townhomes at Ruby View is approved for 10 townhouse lots and 1
common lot.

5. The Utility Department will issue a Will Serve Letter for the subdivision.

6. Site disturbance shall not commence prior to approval of the project’s construction plans
by the Nevada Department of Environmental Protection.

7. Construction shall not commence prior to Final Map approval by the City Council and
issuance of a will-serve letter by the City of Elko.

8. Conformance with the conditions of approval of the Tentative Map is required.

9. The Owner/Developer is to provide the appropriate contact information for the qualified
engineer and engineering firm contracted to oversee the project along with the required
inspection and testing necessary to produce an As-Built for submittal to the City of Elko.
The Engineer of Record is to ensure all materials meet the latest edition of the Standard
Specifications for Public Works.  All right-of-way and utility improvements are to be
certified by the Engineer of Record for the project.



















Agenda Item #  I.B.2 

Created on 4/10/2020 Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

1. Review, consideration and possible approval of Final Map No. 2-20, filed by

Koinonia Development, LP, for the development of a subdivision entitled Mountain

View Townhomes – Unit 1 involving the proposed division of approximately 1.00

acres of property into 12 townhouse lots for residential development and 1 common

lot approximately 26,784 sq. ft. in area and 1 remainder parcel approximately 2.38

acres in size, within the CT (Commercial Transitional) Zoning District, and matters

related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

2. Meeting Date:  May 5, 2020

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS

4. Time Required: 15 Minutes

5. Background Information: Subject property is located on the south side of N 5th Street

at the intersection of Mary Way. (APN 001-610-096, 001-610-097, 001-610-098, 001-

610-099, and a portion of 001-610-075)

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application and Staff Report

8. Recommended Motion: Recommend that the City Council accept, on behalf of the

public, the parcels of land offered for dedication for public use in conformity with

the terms of the offer of dedication; that the final map substantially complies with

the tentative map; that the City Council approve the agreement to install

improvements in accordance with the approved construction plans that satisfies the

requirements of Title 2 Chapter 3, and conditionally approve Final Map 2-20 with

findings and conditions listed in the Staff Report dated April 20, 2020.

9. Findings: See Staff Report dated April 20, 2020

10. Prepared By: Michele Rambo, AICP, Development Manager

11. Agenda Distribution:  Koinonia Development, LP

Attn: John Smales 

207 Brookwood Drive 

Elko, NV 89801 

johnskoinonia@gmail.com 

High Desert Engineering, LLC 

Attn: Tom Ballew 

tcballew@frontiernet.net 





Page 1 of 8

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT

REPORT DATE: April 20, 2020
PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: May 5, 2020
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: I.B.2
APPLICATION NUMBER: Final Map 2-20
APPLICANT: Koinonia Development, LP
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Mountain View Townhomes – Unit 1

A Final Map for the division of approximately 1.00 acre into 12 townhouse lots for
residential development and 1 common lot approximately 26,784 sq. ft. in area and 1
remainder parcel approximately 2.38 acres in size, within a CT (Commercial Transitional)
zoning district.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

RECOMMEND CONDITIONAL APPROVAL, subject to findings of fact, and conditions as stated

City of Elko
1751 College Avenue

Elko, NV  89801
(775) 777-7160

FAX (775) 777-7119



Final Map 15-19
Tower Hill Phase 3

Page 2 of 8

in this report.

PROJECT INFORMATION

PARCEL NUMBER: 001-610-096, 001-610-097, 001-610-098, 001-610-
099, and a portion of 001-610-075

PARCEL SIZE: 3.24 Acres – Approved Tentative Map
1.00 Acre – Proposed Unit 1

EXISTING ZONING: (CT) Commercial Transitional

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: (MU-NGHBHD) Mixed-Use Neighborhood

EXISTING LAND USE: Vacant

BACKGROUND:

1. The Final Map for Mountain View Townhomes-Unit 1has been presented before
expiration of the subdivision proceedings in accordance with NRS 278.360(1)(a)(2) and
City code.

2. The Planning Commission reviewed and recommended a conditional approval to the City
Council on the Mountain View Townhomes Tentative Map.

3. The City Council conditionally approved the Mountain View Townhomes Tentative
Map.

4. The subdivision is located on APNs 001-610-096, 001-610-097, 001-610-098, 001-610-
099, and a portion of 001-610-075 (being purchased from the City of Elko).

5. The proposed overall subdivision consists of 44 residential lots and 1 common lot.
6. The total subdivided area is approximately 3.24 acres.
7. The proposed density is 13.58 units per acre.
8. No public streets are being dedicated as part of this subdivision.
9. Drainage and utility easements are provided along all lot lines.
10. The property is located on the south side of N 5th Street at the intersection of Mary Way.

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:

The property is surrounded by:
 Northwest: Commercial (C) / Developed
 Northeast: Residential Mobile Home (RMH) / Developed
 Southwest: Public/Quasi-Public (PQP) / Developed
 Southeast: Commercial (C) / Developed

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS:

 The property is an undeveloped commercial parcel.
 The site abuts previous residential development to the northeast, commercial buildings on

the northwest and southeast, and Mountain View Park on the southwest.
 The parcel is generally flat, but has some significant slope in the southwest corner, which



Final Map 15-19
Tower Hill Phase 3

Page 3 of 8

has been incorporated into the tentative map design.
 The property will be accessed by two driveways off of N 5th Street.

APPLICABLE MASTER PLAN AND CITY CODE SECTIONS:

 City of Elko Master Plan – Land Use Component
 City of Elko Master Plan – Transportation Component
 City of Elko Redevelopment Plan
 City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-3-7 Final Map State (Stage III)
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-3-8 Content and Format of Final Map Submittal
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-3-9 to 3-3-16 (Inclusive) Subdivision Design Standards
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-3-17 to 3-3-22 (Inclusive) Public Improvements/

Guarantees
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-3, 3-2-4, 3-2-5(E), 3-2-5(G), and 3-2-17 Zoning Code

Standards
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-8 Flood Plain Management

MASTER PLAN - Land use:

Conformance with the Land Use component of the Master Plan was evaluated with review and
approval of the Tentative Map.  The Final Map is in conformance with the Tentative Map.

Therefore, the proposed subdivision is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the
Master Plan.

MASTER PLAN - Transportation:

Conformance with the Transportation component of the Master Plan was evaluated with review
and approval of the Tentative Map.  The Final Map is in conformance with the Tentative Map.

Therefore, the proposed subdivision is in conformance with the Transportation Component of the
Master Plan.

ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN:

The property is not located within the redevelopment area.

ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN:

The property is located within the 20-year capture zone for several City of Elko wells.
Development of the site is required to be connected to a programmed sewer system and all street
drainage will be directed to a storm sewer system.

As the project is designed, it does not present a hazard to City wells.

SECTION 3-3-7 FINAL MAP STAGE (STAGE III):

Pre-submission Requirements (C)(1) – The Final Map is in conformance with the zone
requirements.

Pre-submission Requirements (C)(2) – The proposed Final Map conforms to the Tentative
Map.



Final Map 15-19
Tower Hill Phase 3

Page 4 of 8

SECTION 3-3-8 CONTENT AND FORMAT OF FINAL MAP SUBMITTAL:

A. Form and Content – The Final Map conforms to the required size specifications and
provides the appropriate affidavits and certifications.

B. Identification Data
1. The Final Map identifies the subdivision and provides its location by section,

township, range, and county.
2. The Final Map was prepared by a properly licensed surveyor.
3. The Final Map provides a scale, north arrow, and date of preparation.

C. Survey Data
1. The boundaries of the subdivision are fully balanced and closed.
2. Any exceptions are noted on the Final Map.
3. The Final Map is tied to a section corner.
4. The location and description of any physical encroachments upon the boundary of

the subdivision are noted on the Final Map.
D. Descriptive Data

1. The name, right-of-way lines, courses, lengths, and widths of all streets and
easements are noted on the Final Map.

2. All drainage ways are noted on the Final Map.
3. All utility and public service easements are noted on the Final Map.
4. The location and dimensions of all lots, parcels, and exceptions are shown on the

Final Map.
5. All residential lots are numbered consecutively on the Final Map.
6. There are no sites dedicated to the public shown on the Final Map.
7. The locations of adjoining subdivisions are noted on the Final Map with required

information.
8. There are no deed restrictions proposed.

E. Dedication and Acknowledgment
1. The owner’s certificate has the required dedication information for all easements

and right-of-ways.
2. The execution of dedication is acknowledged with space to be certified by a

notary public.
F. Additional Information

1. All centerline monuments for streets are noted as being set on the Final Map.
2. The centerline and width of each right-of-way is noted on the Final Map.
3. The Final Map indicates the location of monuments that will be set to determine

the boundaries of the subdivision.
4. The length and bearing of each lot line is identified on the Final Map.
5. The Final Map is not located adjacent to a city boundary.
6. The Final Map identifies the location of the section lines nearest the property.

G. City to Check
1. Closure calculations have been provided. Civil improvement plans have been

approved.  Drainage plans have been approved.  An engineer’s estimate has been
provided.

2. The lot closures are within the required tolerances.
H. Required Certifications

1. The Owner’s Certificate is shown on the Final Map.



Final Map 15-19
Tower Hill Phase 3

Page 5 of 8

2. The Owner’s Certificate offers for dedication all right-of-ways shown on the Final
Map.

3. A Clerk Certificate is shown on the Final Map, certifying the signature of the City
Council.

4. The Owner’s Certificate offers for dedication all easements shown on the Final
Map.

5. A Surveyor’s Certificate is shown on the Final Map and provides the required
language.

6. The City Engineer’s Certificate is shown on the Final Map.
7. A certificate from the Nevada Division of Environmental Protection is provided

with the required language.
8. The engineer of record has submitted the Tentative Map and construction plans to

the state, but no written approval has been received.
9. A certificate from the Division of Water Resources is provided on the Final Map

with the required language.
10. The construction plans identify the required water meters for the subdivision.

SECTION 3-3-9 THROUGH 3-3-16 (INCLUSIVE)

The proposed subdivision was evaluated for conformance to the referenced sections of code
during the Tentative Map process.

The proposed development conforms with these sections of City code.

SECTION 3-3-17 RESPONSIBILITY FOR PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS

The subdivider shall be responsible for all required improvements in conformance with this
section of City code.

SECTION 3-3-18 CONSTRUCTION PLANS

The subdivider has submitted plans to the city and state agencies for review to receive all
required permits in accordance with this section of City code. The plans have been approved by
City staff.

SECTION 3-3-19 CONSTRUCTION AND INSPECTION

The subdivider has submitted plans to the city and state agencies for review to receive all permits
in accordance with this section of City code.

SECTION 3-3-20 REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS

The subdivider has submitted civil improvement plans which are in conformance with this
section of City code.

Civil improvements include curb, gutter, and sidewalk as well as paving and utilities within the
N 5thn Street right-of-way.



Final Map 15-19
Tower Hill Phase 3

Page 6 of 8

SECTION 3-3-21 AGREEMENT TO INSTALL IMPROVEMENTS

The subdivider will be required to enter into a Performance Agreement to conform to this section
of City code.

SECTION 3-3-22 PERFORMANCE AND MAINTENANCE GUARANTEES

The subdivider will be required to provide a Performance and Maintenance Guarantee as
stipulated in the Performance Agreement in conformance with this section of City code.

SECTIONS 3-2-3, 3-2-4, 3-2-5(E), 3-2-5(G), AND 3-2-17

The proposed subdivision was evaluated for conformance to the referenced sections of code
during the Tentative Map process.

The proposed development conforms with these sections of City code.

SECTION 3-8 FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT:

This parcel is not designated in a Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA).

FINDINGS

1. The Final Map for Mountain View Townhomes – Unit 1 has been presented before
expiration of the subdivision proceedings in accordance with NRS 278.360(1)(a)(2) and
City code.

2. The Final Map is in conformance with the Tentative Map.

3. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with the Land Use and Transportation
Components of the Master Plan.

4. The proposed development conforms with Sections 3-3-9 through 3-3-16 (inclusive).

5. The Subdivider shall be responsible for all required improvements in conformance with
Section 3-3-17 of City code.

6. The Subdivider has submitted construction plans in conformance with Section 3-3-18 of
City code.

7. The Subdivider has submitted plans to the city and state agencies for review to receive all
required permits in accordance with the requirements of Section 3-3-19 of City code.

8. The Subdivider has submitted construction plans which, having been found to be in
conformance with Section 3-3-20 of City code, have been approved by City staff.



Final Map 15-19
Tower Hill Phase 3

Page 7 of 8

9. The Subdivider will be required to enter into a Performance Agreement to conform to
Section 3-3-21 of City code.

10. The Subdivider will be required to provide a Performance and Maintenance Guarantee as
stipulated in the Performance Agreement in conformance with Section 3-3-22 of City
code.

11. The proposed development conforms to Sections 3-2-3, 3-2-4, 3-2-5(E), 3-2-5(G), and 3-
2-17 of City code.

12. The proposed development is in conformance with Section 3-8 of City code.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends this item be conditionally approved with the following conditions:

1. The Developer shall execute a Performance and Maintenance Agreement in accordance
with Section 3-3-21 of City code.  The Performance Agreement shall be secured in
accordance with Section 3-3-22 of City code.  In conformance with Section 3-3-21 of
City code, the public improvements shall be completed within a time of no later than two
(2) years of the date of Final Map approval by the City Council unless extended as
stipulated in City code.

2. The Performance and Maintenance Agreement shall be approved by the City Council.

3. The Developer shall enter into the Performance and Maintenance Agreement within 30
days of approval of the Final Map by the City Council.

4. The Final Map for Mountain View Townhomes – Unit 1 is approved for 12 townhouse
lots and 1 common lot.

5. The Utility Department will issue a Will Serve Letter for the subdivision.

6. Site disturbance shall not commence prior to approval of the project’s construction plans
by the Nevada Department of Environmental Protection.

7. Construction shall not commence prior to Final Map approval by the City Council and
issuance of a will-serve letter by the City of Elko.

8. Conformance with the conditions of approval of the Tentative Map is required.

9. The Owner/Developer is to provide the appropriate contact information for the qualified
engineer and engineering firm contracted to oversee the project along with the required
inspection and testing necessary to produce an As-Built for submittal to the City of Elko.
The Engineer of Record is to ensure all materials meet the latest edition of the Standard
Specifications for Public Works.  All right-of-way and utility improvements are to be
certified by the Engineer of Record for the project.



Final Map 15-19
Tower Hill Phase 3

Page 8 of 8

10. Fire Department Turnaround to be constructed to 2018 IFC Appendix D 102.1 Access
and Loading...approved driving surface capable of supporting the imposed load of fire
apparatus weighing up to 75,000 pounds.

11. Fire department turn around be labeled as “FIRE DEPARTMENT TURN-AROUND
ACCESS EASEMENT”.















Agenda Item # I.B.3 

Created on 1/17/17 Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

1. Title: Review, consideration and possible recommendation to City Council for the

2020 City of Elko Land Inventory update. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

2. Meeting Date: May 5, 2020

3. Agenda Category: MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS, PETITIONS, AND COMMUNICATIONS

4. Time Required: 10 Minutes

5. Background Information: City of Elko Land Inventory spreadsheet is to be updated

when necessary

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Spreadsheet, Memo

8. Recommended Motion: Forward a recommendation to City Council to update the

City of Elko Land Inventory with the presented changes

9. Findings:

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner

11. Agenda Distribution:



STAFF COMMENT FLOW SHEET 
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA DATE: 5)6 

' **Do not use pencil or red pen, they do not reproduce** 

Title '71)10 Land Tnvmfn:J V pid,e 
Applicant(s): Cttu o'f E.\V1) 
Site Location: -- u__,A ....... ,....,.VA�--------------------- 
Current Zoning: JJlA Date Received: N/A Date Public Notice: ,Al/A 
COMMENT :::Zfa:, i!:) ::In l.fdaf! � Ci'�d e.ll:'.6 Land InuetraMJ 

\A.H% tJt CeaS°';j CJ.ro� 

**If additional space is needed please provide a separate memorandum** 

Initial 

City Manager: Date: 'f/.J2/; 9 
tJo ( OtMW1.<2vtt"$!L(2vtL9rf1.:.S: · 

Initial 



2019 City Land Inventory Update

PROP_REF_NO PROPERTY_LOCATION APN PROP_SIZE ZONING MASTER_PLAN_DESIGNATION CURRENT_USE PROPERTY_DETERMINATION NOTES
1 N 5TH STREET 001-610-094 3.38 AG RES-MD VACANT SELL RETAIN AN EASMENT FOR WATER LINE
2 N 5TH STREET 001-610-095 2.5 AG RED-MD VACANT SELL
3 N OF MITTRY AND SPRUCE 001-610-103 84.076 AG PARKS VACANT PARKS OPEN SPACE,
4 500 FT NORTH OF MITTRY 001-610-104 41.887 AG RES-MD VACANT SELL / RETAIN A PORTION RESIDENTIAL / FUTURE CEMETERY
5 N OF COPPER ST, 500 FT W OF 5TH ST 001-610-092 3.8 PQP RES-MD STORMWATER CHANNEL/DETENTION UTILITIES
6 S OF CHRIS AVE, 180 FT SW OF N 5TH ST 002-610-074 19.24 PQP PUBLIC STORMWATER DETENTION UTILITIES
7 SE OF RUBY VISTA AND COLLEGE PKWY 001-620-059 1.16 PQP PUBLIC CADV LEASED CADV
8 RUBY VISTA DR, 550 FT E OF COLLEGE PKWY 001-620-060 1.3 PQP PUBLIC VACANT LEASED AMERICAN LEGION
9 S OF RUBY VISTA 001-620-021 1.69 PQP PUBLIC VACANT RETAIN

10 S OF RUBY VISTA 001-620-015 1.02 PQP PUBLIC VACANT RETAIN
11 NW OF RUBY VISTA DR 001-530-024 3.25 PQP RES-MD SENIOR CENTER LEASED SENIOR CENTER
12 W OF DELAWARE 001-860-106 5.65 AG PUBLIC VACANT SELL  FOR SALE
13 ROCKY ROAD 001-01A-012 38.08 AG RES-MD VACANT SELL CEMETERY
14 S OF RUBY VISTA 001-620-061 1.24 PQP PUBLIC VACANT RETAIN
15 S OF RUBY VISTA 001-620-029 1.44 PQP PUBLIC VACANT RETAIN
16 S OF RUBY VISTA 001-530-022 0.355 PQP GI VACANT RETAIN PUBLIC USE
17 SEC 17 T 35N R 55E 006-100-030 800 ELKO COUNTY RES-LOW VACANT SELL AVAILABLE FOR SALE OR EXCHANGE
18 N OF W. IDAHO ST 006-09G-027 8.69 ELKO COUNTY LI IBP VACANT AIRPORT RETAIN FOR AIRPORT EXPANSION
19 W IDAHO ST 006-09G-031 2.55 ELKO COUNTY LI/COM IBP LEASED LEASED FUTURE AIRPORT EXPANSION
20 W IDAHO ST 006-09G-030 2.96 ELKO COUNTY LI/COM IBP LEASED LEASED FUTURE AIRPORT EXPANSION
21 W IDAHO ST 006-09G-012 13 ELKO COUNTY AG RES/COM IBP VACANT AIRPORT FUTURE EXPANSION
22 W OF HOT SPRINGS RD 001-671-001 0.45 LI IBP VACANT SELL ACCESS IS ACROSS RAILROAD SPUR
22 W OF HOT SPRINGS ROAD 001-673-003 2.61 LI IBP VACANT SELL SELL WITH 001-671-001
23 398 HOT SPRINGS ROAD 001-677-001 9.34 LI IBP VACANT SELL
24 W SAGE ST 001-660-003 7.29 PQP PARKS OPEN SPACE ANGEL PARK/VACANT PARKS
26 WATER ST 001-411-006 0.378 PQP MIXED USE DOWNTOWN PEDESTRIAN BRIDGE CITY FACILITY MAINTAIN FOR PEDESTRIAN BRIDGE
27 5551 MANZANITA LN 001-860-071 2.29 AG GI WELL 38 UTILITIES RETAIN FOR UTILITIES, PUBLIC WORKS, FREEWAY ON/OFF
28 HIGHLAND DR 001-132-001 1.64 RES MD-RES VACANT AIRPORT RUNWAY PROTECTION ZONE
29 N OF HIGHLAND DR 001-142-006 1.495 RES MD-RES VACANT AIRPORT RUNWAY PROTECTION ZONE
30 MTN CITY HGWY 001-660-105 12.21 PLANNED COMMERCIAL HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL VACANT AIRPORT LEASE LEASED
31 MTN CITY HGWY & THOMAS GALLAGHER WY 000-660-126 1.373 PC PC LEASED AIRPORT LEASE ASPEN PLAZA
31 1657 MTN CITY HGWY 001-660-125 0.882 PC PC LEASED AIRPORT LEASE ASPEN PLAZA
31 1655 MTN CITY HGWY 001-660-124 3 PC PC LEASED AIRPORT LEASE ASPEN PLAZA
32 W SAGE ST 001-640-033 0.78 RES MD-RES VACANT SELL
33 W OAK STREET 001-152-002 0.59 RES MD-RES VACANT SELL PROCEEDS OF SALE GO TO HARP
34 W IDAHO ST 006-09G-009 5 ELKO COUNTY COM IBP VACANT AIRPORT FUTURE EXPANSION
35 W IDAHO STREET 006-09G-005 2.7 ELKO COUNTY COM IBP VACANT AIRPORT FUTURE EXPANSION
36 W IDAHO ST 006-09G-008 1.59 ELKO COUNTY COM IBP VACANT AIRPORT FUTURE EXPANSION
38 LAUREL DR 001-660-103 0.16 RES MD-RES VACANT UTILITIES DRAINAGE EASEMENT
40 WALNUT 001-026-003 0.057 RES RES-MD VACANT RETAIN STORM DRAIN
41 SAGE ST 001-026-007 0.057 RES RES-MD VACANT RETAIN STORM DRAIN
42 SAGE ST 001-061-003 0.057 RES RES-MD VACANT RETAIN STORM DRAIN
43 ELM ST 001-061-007 0.057 RES RES-MD VACANT RETAIN STORM DRAIN
44 ELM ST 001-064-004 0.057 RES RES-MD VACANT RETAIN STORM DRAIN
45 MAPLE ST 001-064-007 0.057 RES RES-MD VACANT RETAIN STORM DRAIN
46 8TH ST 001-066-005 0.092 RES RES-MD VACANT SELL
47 8TH ST 001-066-012 0.034 RES RES-MD VACANT SELL
48 MAPLE ST 001-067-003 0.057 RES RES-MD VACANT RETAIN POSSIBLE HORNBAGER LEASE
49 ASH ST 001-067-007 0.057 RES RES-MD VACANT RETAIN
50 ASH ST 001-103-003 0.057 RES RES-MD VACANT RETAIN STORM DRAIN
51 FIR ST 001-103-006 0.057 RES RES-MD VACANT RETAIN STORM DRAIN
52 FIR ST 001-106-003 0.057 RES RES-MD VACANT RETAIN STORM DRAIN
53 CEDAR ST 001-106-005 0.057 RES RS-MD VACANT RETAIN STORM DRAIN
54 WATER STREET 001-411-004 0.93 GI MIXED USE DOWNTOWN FISH BUIDING LEASED
55 1060 DOUGLAS ST 001-413-002 0.12 GI GI VACANT CITY FACILITY RETAIN FOR CITY SHOPS/STORAGE
56 W OF GOLF COURSE ROAD 001-620-018 0.7 PQP PUBLIC LDS STORAGE LEASED COUNTY ASSESOR SHOWS THIS AS 3.46 ACRES
57 SHARPS ACCESS 001-630-019 0.89 PQP PUBLIC SHARPS ACCESS ROW DEDICATE AS ROW
58 1415 MTN CITY HGWY 001-660-032 1.38 C GC LEASED AIRPORT LEASE SHELL GAS STATION
59 IDAHO ST AND MANZANITA LN 001-601-016 0.03 COM GC VACANT RETAIN
60 MAIN ST 001-691-009 0.07 LI COM VACANT SELL SELL AS REMNANT TO ADJACENT PROPERTY OWNER
61 S OF SILVER STREET 001-710-044 0.69 GI IBP VACANT RETAIN LANDLOCKED, DISPOSABLE TO GEOTHERMAL USERS
62 IDAHO ST 001-214-014 0.27 COM MD-RES VACANT RETAIN SLOPE EASEMENT

1



2019 City Land Inventory Update

PROP_REF_NO PROPERTY_LOCATION APN PROP_SIZE ZONING MASTER_PLAN_DESIGNATION CURRENT_USE PROPERTY_DETERMINATION NOTES
63 W IDAHO ST 001-214-010 0.07 RES MD-RES VACANT SELL AVAILABLE FOR SALE/LANDLOCKED/SELL AS REMNANT
64 ERRECART 001-690-001 69.7 PQP PQP VACANT PARKS IDENTIFIED FOR SPORTS COMPLEX
65 BULLION ROAD 001-690-001 38.7 RES MD-RES VACANT SELL
66 BULLION ROAD 001-690-001 11.1 PQP MD-RES VACANT RETAIN POSSIBLE EXCHANGE WITH SCHOOL DISTRICT
67 ERRECART 001-690-001 4.4 PQP PQP VACANT PARKS
68 VICTORIA STREET 001-710-055 50 AG MD-RES VACANT SELL EXCHANGE
69 WASHINGTON AVE 001-730-004 11.76 AG MD-RES SOUTHSIDE DAM UTILITIES
70 ERRECART BLVD 001-770-003 45.78 PC IBP VACANT SELL
72 BULLION ROAD 001-690-018 1.27 RMH MD-RES VACANT PARKS USE FOR PARK ACCESS
73 BULLION ROAD 001-690-019 0.83 RMH MD-RES VACANT PARKS
74 BULLION ROAD 001-690-020 0.62 RES MD-RES VACANT PARKS
75 BULLION ROAD 001-690-021 0.228 RES MD-RES VACANT RETAIN
76 BULLION ROAD 001-700-040 0.039 RMH MD-RES VACANT DEDICATE AS ROW
77 S OF DOUGLAS ST 001-710-023 0.059 GI MIXED USE DOWNTOWN VACANT RETAIN
78 STITZEL ROAD 001-920-064 0.147 RES MD-RES VACANT PARKS
79 STITZEL 001-925-035 0.147 RES MD-RES VACANT PARKS
80 PINION RD 001-927-002 163.63 AG PQP LANDFILL/VACANT LANDFILL
81 SEC 6 T 33N R55E 006-080-013 186.82 ELKO COUNTY UNKNOWN VACANT RETAIN, WRF
82 SEC 32 T 34N R 55E 006-090-014 591.17 ELKO COUNTY PUBLIC WRF PERC PONDS UTILITIES
83 POWDERHOUSE ROAD 006-09E-019 25.13 ELKO COUNTY RES-HD LAMOILLE WATER TANK UTILITIES EX TANK AND FUTURE EXPANSION
86 SEC 18 001-995-001 634 AG RES-MD VACANT PURCHASE RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT
87 STATICE ST 006-10C-002 112 ELKO COUNTY IBP, PUBLIC VACANT PURCHASE:INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT PURCHASE FROM STATE
88 725 RAILROAD ST 001-275-007 0.23 C MIXED USE DOWNTOWN PARKS AND REC/FIRE STATION #2 CITY FACILITY
89 9TH STREET 001-185-002 0.18 PQP PQP CEMETERY PARKS PORTION OF MASONS AND ODDFELLOWS CEMETERY
90 12TH STREET 001-293-001 0.12 C COMM- GEN 12TH STREET TURN LANE DEDICATE AS ROW
91 1751 COLLEGE AVE 001-560-051 3 PQP PQP CITY HALL CITY FACILITY
92 1401 COLLEGE AVE 001-200-002 1.34 R PQP OLD ELKO POLICE DEPARTMENT CITY FACILITY
93 MANZANITA 001-560-040 0.5 C COMM-GEN LEASED TO CAL-RANCH LEASED LEASED BY WATER DEPT
94 MANZANITA 001-560-040 1.36 C COMM-GEN WELL/LAYDOWN YARD UTILITIES
95 IDAHO STREET 001-860-001 0.498 LI IND-GEN WELL 33 UTILITIES CONSTRUCTION WATERWELL
96 FRONT STREET 001-01R-001 38.1 PQP PARKS HUMBOLDT RIVER PARKS
97 12TH STREET 001-630-021 2.16 PQP PARKS HUMBOLDT RIVER PARKS
98 12TH STREET 001-630-063 0.2 R RES-HD ACCESS EASEMENT RETAIN RIVER VIEW DRIVE
99 WALNUT 001-024-001 0.023 RES RES-MD VACANT SELL

100 FRONT STREET 001-710-024 6.77 PQP PARKS SOUTHSIDE PARK PARKS
101 HUMBOLDT RIVER 001-680-007 2.53 GI PARKS HUMBOLDT RIVER PARKS
102 875 S. 5TH ST 001-472-014 0.308 C RES - MD LEE ENGINE CITY FACILITY
103 WASHINGTON AVE 001-730-003 2 AG PUBLIC WATER TANK UTILITIES
104 301 BULLION RD 001-700-013 0.001 RMH RES - MD VACANT SELL SELL AS REMNANT
105 RUBY VIEW GOLF COURSE 001-530-001 221 PQP PARKS GOLF COURSE PARKS
106 SILVER STREET 47.58 C / GI LI/GI VACANT/RR LEASE PURCHASEParcel 176 was removed from the acreage of this parcel, and added to the bottom of the list.
107 AIRPORT 001-660-106 12 PQP PUBLIC VACANT AIRPORT LEASE
108 AIRPORT 001-660-106 19.7 PQP PUBLIC VACANT AIRPORT LEASE
109 AIRPORT 001-660-106 16.9 PQP PUBLIC VACANT AIRPORT LEASE
110 AIRPORT 001-660-106 3.25 PQP IND- BS PARK VACANT AIRPORT LEASE
111 AIRPORT 001-660-106 13.8 PQP IND- BS PARK VACANT AIRPORT LEASE
112 AIRPORT 001-660-106 9.9 PQP IND- BS PARK VACANT AIRPORT LEASE
113 AIRPORT 001-660-106 479 PC/C/PQP PQP AIRPORT AIRPORT
114 IDAHO STREET 27.48 C / LI COMM-GEN RR LEASED PURCHASE
115 SAGECREST DRIVE 001-01F-086 1.04 R RES-MD STORM DRAIN DETENTION UTILITIES
116 MITTRY AVE 001-620-035 2.39 RES-MD MITTRY AVE DEDICATE AS ROW
117 N 5TH ST 001-610-036 2.47 AG N 5TH ST DEDICATE AS ROW
118 RUBY VISTA DR 001-620-015 0.36 PQP RES-HD RUBY VISTA DEDICATE AS ROW A PORTION OF 001-620-015
119 FLAGVIEW DRIVE 2.4 PQP PQP FLAGPOLE LOCATION PARKSA PORTION OF BALL FIELDS PARCEL 001-620-017 AND ALL OF 001-530-001
120 FAIRGROUNDS ROAD 001-620-014 35 PQP PUBLIC FAIRGROUNDS LEASED
121 GOLF COURSE ROAD 001-620-017 26.5 PQP PARKS - OS KUMP/WORNECK FIELDS PARKS
122 IDAHO STREET 001-560-001 21.2 PQP PARKS - OS MAIN CITY PARK PARKS
123 COUNTRY CLUB DRIVE 001-560-001 12.2 PQP PARKS - OS JOHNNY APPLESEED PARK PARKS
124 HAWTHORNE DR 001-61F-029 0.63 RES RES-MD STORM WATER DETENTION UTILITIES 100 YR DETENTION AREA
125 N OF INDUSTRIAL 0.006 WELL 24 UTILITIES PORTION OF 006-090-021
126 3695 MANZANITA LANE 001-860-080 0.115 LI IND- GEN WELL 37 UTILITIES
126 MTN CITY HWY 0.06 PQP PUBLIC WELL 30 UTILITIES PORTION OF 001-660-106

2



2019 City Land Inventory Update

PROP_REF_NO PROPERTY_LOCATION APN PROP_SIZE ZONING MASTER_PLAN_DESIGNATION CURRENT_USE PROPERTY_DETERMINATION NOTES
127 IDAHO ST 001-590-008 0.24 C COMM- GEN WELL 12 UTILITIES
128 30TH ST 001-560-081 0.014 C COMM- GEN WELL 25 UTILITIES ON WILSON BATES PROPERTY
129 WALNUT & 7TH 001-028-001 0.028 R RES-MD WELL 18 UTILITIES
130 IDAHO ST 001-601-012 0.12 C COMM- GEN WELL 13 UTILITIES ON WENDY'S PROPERTY
131 1771 IDAHO ST 001-560-086 0.013 C WELL 14 UTILITIES
132 SEWELL 001-013-018 0.071 R RES-MD WELL 16 SELL Remove it from Utilities and add SELL
133 E OF RAPTOR ST 001-610-074 0.096 PQP PUBLIC WELL 15 UTILITIES
134 IDAHO ST, CHRIS SHERRIN 001-560-001 0.103 PQP PARKS WELL 10-A UTILITIES
135 4745 MANZANITA 001-860-001 0.264 LI IND-GEN WELL 31 UTILITIES
136 5231 MANZANITA LN 001-860-012 0.23 LI IND-GEN WELL 27 UTILITIES
137 RUBY VISTA DR AND STATICE ST 001-860-065 0.63 IBP IND- BS PARK WELL 36 UTILITIES
138 GOLF COURSE 001-530-001 0.064 AG PARKS WELL 20 RETAIN
140 1535 INDIAN VIEW HEIGHTS DRIVE 001-530-025 2.84 PQP PUBLIC VACANT UTILITIES WATER TANKS
141 EXIT 298 001-679-007 0.75 LI IND- BS PARK UTILITY RETAIN FUTURE WELL SITE
142 STP ROAD 001-670-003 77 GI PQP SEWER TREATMENT PLANT UTILITIES TREATMENT PLANT AND EXPANSION AREA
143 ALLEY BETWEEN ASH AND FIR 001-082-024 0.3 PQP RES-MD POCKET PARK PARKS
144 MOUNATIN VIEW PARK 001-610-075 24.56 PQP PARKS - OS PARKS PARKS/ SELL A PORTION SELL APPROX. 5,000 SQ. FT. AT ENTRY
145 PEACE PARK 001-620-069 8.6 PQP PARKS -OS PARKS PARKS
146 1090 DOUGLAS ST 001-413-003 0.24 GI IND-GEN WATER SHOP CITY FACILITY
147 10TH STREET 001-412-001 0.48 GI IND-GEN STREET DEPARTMENT CITY FACILITY
148 203 10TH ST 001-413-001 0.35 GI IND-GEN STREET DEPARTMENT CITY FACILITY
149 975 WATER ST 001-412-003 0.36 GI IND-GEN FLEET DEPARTMENT CITY FACILITY
150 1005 WATER ST 001-413-004 0.7 GI IND-GEN FACILITIES CITY FACILITY
151 ERRECART BLVD 001-380-006 3 PQP IND-BS-PARK ELKO HEAT LEASED LEASE TO ELKO HEAT
152 IDAHO ST 006-320-037 1.033 IND-GEN WELL 1-96 UTILITIES
154 HUMBOLDT RIVER -5TH TO 370' E. OF LYON 001-01R-001 12.6 PQP PARKS-OS HUMBOLDT RIVER PARKS
155 CEDAR STREET 001-620-000 11.47 PQP PUBLIC CEMETERY RETAIN CITY OF ELKO CEMETERY
156 CEDAR STREET 001-185-001 3.61 PQP PUBLIC CEMETERY RETAIN MASONS AND ODDFELLOWS CEMETERY
157 1448 SILVER STREET 001-630-086 3.066 LI IND- GEN POLICE DEPARTMENT CITY FACILITY POLICE DEPARTMENT
158 OWL RD 001-926-110 0.304 RMH RES-MD VACANT RETAIN CEDAR  ESTATES STORM DRAINAGE
159 1755 5TH STREET PARK 001-620-023 2.32 PQP PARKS -OS PARKS PARKS
160 1701 5TH STREET 001-620-001 0.9 PQP PARKS - OS VACANT IN PROCESS OF PURCHASING FUTURE PARKING FOR 5TH STREET PARK
161 200 WEST RIVER 001-381-010 0.133 GI IND-GEN VACANT RETAIN EASEMENT TO TOWER AND SEWER
162 SOUTH OF I-80 NORTH OF AIRPORT RUNWAY 001-660-009 60.19 PQP IND-BS-PARK VACANT CITY PURCHASE AIRPORT MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION
163 NORTH OF GOLF COURSE - JENNINGS WAY EXTENSION 006-090-900 295 ELKO COUNTY RES-MED VACANT CITY PURCHASE
164 BUS BARN FACILITY 001-562-002 179.96 PQP PUBLIC ECSD BUS BARN CITY PURCHASE
165 SECTION 22 BLM PARCEL SOUTH OF BULLION 001-710-007 10 AG RES- MED VACANT CITY PURCHASE
166 JENNINGS WAY BY ADOBE MIDDLE SCHOOL 001-01A-016 10.97 PQP RES-MED VACANT CITY PURCHASE
167 BLM PROPERTY EAST OF HUMBOLT HILLS SUBDIVISION 006-090-900 10 ELKO COUNTY RES-MD VACANT CITY PURCHASE
168 SECTION 8 BLM LAND 006-090-900 51.9 ELKO COUNTY RES-MD VACANT CITY PURCHASE
169 SECTION 8 BLM LAND 006-090-900 135 ELKO COUNTY RES-MD VACANT CITY PURCHASE
170 SECTION 8 BLM LAND 006-090-900 49.3 ELKO COUNTY RES-MD VACANT CITY PURCHASE
171 SECTION 8 BLM LAND 006-090-900 2 ELKO COUNTY RES-MD VACANT CITY PURCHASE
172 SECTION 8 BLM LAND 006-090-900 9 ELKO COUNTY RES-MD VACANT CITY PURCHASE
173 BLM LAND MONTROSE LANE 006-090-900 9.7 ELKO COUNTY RES-MD VACANT CITY PURCHASE
174 SECTION 8 BLM LAND 006-090-900 2 ELKO COUNTY RES-MD VACANT CITY PURCHASE
175 PARCEL ADJACENT TO BUS BARN FACILITY 001-562-003 43.74 AG RES-MD VACANT CITY PURCHASE
176 East end of Silver Street 001-630-102 11.41 GI / C IND-BS-PARK VACANT RETAIN Added 2/6/20 BT

3






































































	5/5/20 Agenda
	3/3/20 Minutes
	I.A.1 - CUP 1-20 Dupee
	I.B.1 - Final Map 1-20 Kelly Builders
	I.B.2 - Final Map 2-20 Koinonia Development
	I.B.3 - Land Inventory



